
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 
 

    
  
 
 
                      

                                                                               
   

 
 
 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 2, 2012 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
 
              9:00 AM Call to Order 
   Approval of Minutes    

 September 25, 2012 
 September 26, 2012 ~ Special Mtg 

    
   Review Agenda 
 

Consent Agenda  
 
   Commissioners    

a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 107 
Fairgrounds 
b.  Contract w/Sierra Electric, Inc. for Electrical Pedestal Replacement     
Human Services 
c. Agreement w/Service Alternatives, Inc. for Developmental Disabilities Services    
d. Agreement w/Peopleworks Tri-Cities, LLC for Developmental Disabilities Services  
e. Amended Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee 
f. Agreement w/EnTrust Community Services for Developmental Disability Services 
Juvenile  
g. Contract w/M Trombley for Legal Representation Services    
h. Truancy Contract w/Kiona-Benton School District 
i. Contract w/J Blanco for Functional Family Therapy Training 
Office of Public Defense 
j. Payment Authorization to P Younesi for Preliminary Court Appearances    
Personnel 
k. Contract w/C Poulsen for Training Services      
Sheriff 
l. Contract w/Watson Furniture Group, Inc. for Master Control Work Stations 
 
 

Leo Bowman 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mf
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on highlighted area.

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight



Agenda – Board of County Commissioners 
October 2, 2012 
Page Two 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 

Public Hearing 
 
Budget Adjustment – K Mercer 
 
6-Year Road Program – S Becken 
  
Scheduled Business: 
 
1-Year Road Program – S Becken 
 
Tri City Regional Chamber of Commerce Coalition Discussion – Comnr. Beaver 
 

  Unscheduled Visitors 
   Board Assignment Update  
 
   
 
    

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, September 25, 2012, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
 
Present: Chairman James Beaver 
  Commissioner Shon Small 
  Commissioner Leo Bowman  
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Finance 
Manager Keith Mercer; Personnel Manager Melina Wenner; Human Services Manager Ed 
Thornbrugh; Central Services Manager Randy Reid; DPA Ryan Brown; Clerk Josie Delvin; 
Bryan Thorp, Public Works; Clark Posey, Planning; Erhiza Rivera, Treasurer’s Office.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of September 18, 2012 were approved.  
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “z”. 
Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Central Services  

a. Renewal of License and Support for Email Firewall System from Microage  
Facilities    

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110 
Fairgrounds 

c.  Lease Agreement w/Benton Franklin Fair Association  
Human Services 

d. Amended Agreement w/Lourdes Health Network for Residential Substance Abuse 
Treatment Services 

e. Agreement w/Goodwill Industries of the Columbia, Inc. for Developmental Disabilities 
Services 

f. Agreement w/Arc of Tri-Cities for Developmental Disabilities Services 
g. Agreement w/Columbia Industries for Developmental Disabilities Services 
h. Grant Amendment w/WA St Department of Commerce, Community Services and 

Housing Division 



 - 2 - 

i. Interlocal Agreement w/Cities of Benton City, Kennewick, Prosser, Richland  and West 
Richland for Local Homeless Housing &Assistance Plans & Programs 

Juvenile  
j. Amending Benton County Resolution 2012-025; Amending Payment to Apollo Sheet 

Metal 
Office of Public Defense 

k. Termination of Superior Court Public Defense Agreement w/S Mendoza 
l. Termination of Superior Court Public Defense Agreement w/K Holt 
m. Termination of Superior Court Public Defense Agreement w/S Johnson 
n. Termination of Superior Court Public Defense Agreement w/L Zeigler 
o. Termination of Superior Court Public Defense Agreement w/G Metro 
p. Termination of Superior Court Public Defense Agreement w/D Arnold 
q. Professional Services Agreement w/C Bennett 

Parks 
r. Contract w/Ikon Marketing Group for Internet Website for Horn Rapids Park 
s. Contract w/Ikon Marketing Group for Maintenance of Internet Website for Horn Rapids 

Park 
Personnel 

t. Rescinding Resolution 08-799 Regarding Hiring Policy for Retired Pers 1 Employees 
u. Employee of the Month Appointment    
v. Contract w/Penser North America, Inc. for Third Party Administrative Services 

Public Works 
w. Short Plat for Property at Prosser Shop   
x. Funding Authorization to Overlay Asphalt at Hinzerling Road 
y. Funding Authorization for Extension of Locust Grove Road Driveway Culvert 
z. Funding Authorization to Pre-Level Harrington Road 

 
Final Plat of Riverdown Estates – SUB 06-04 
 
Clark Posey submitted the final plat of Riverdown Estates and said that all conditions of 
approval had been met and it was the Planning Department’s recommendation for the Board to 
approve the resolution and authorize the Chairman to sign the final plat. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Bowman moved to approve the Final Plat of Riverdown Estates SUB 
06-04 and authorize the Chairman to sign the final plat.   Commissioner Small seconded and 
upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Assignment Update 
 
Commissioner Bowman reported on his attendance at the WSAC meeting.  He said the 
Legislative Steering Committee has yet to meet and finalize its agenda but the Board did 
recommend a budget (Benton County’s dues increased by $147 due to growth of population).  
They also spent a lot of time talking about the Superior Court Indigent Defense litigation issue.  
Additionally, he would be attending the Tri City Chamber luncheon tomorrow.   
 



 - 3 - 

Commissioner Small reported on his attendance at the Benton-Franklin Health Board meeting 
and commented there was a visitor from Yakima County and they were asking for assistance to 
complete a study and outreach program on nitrates and bacteria in the water; he said his goal and 
primary focus was in Benton County.   
 
Chairman Beaver said he also attended the Health Board meeting and extended his concern about 
using resources outside Benton-Franklin County.  He also reported on his attending at the 
HAIEFIC loan committee meeting and Dept. of Ecology meeting.  He said he was given 
information regarding the groundwater management advisory group and that he would pass that 
along to the Planning Department to review what Benton County’s level of involvement should 
be.   Additionally, he toured the waste treatment plant with Adam Fyall and RJ Lott.  
 
Chairman Beaver said he would not be able to sit on the Canvassing Board since he was up for 
re-election and Commissioner Small indicated he would take the appointment.  Additionally, he 
attending the B-F Council of Government meeting and the Board briefly discussed the newly 
proposed RTPO arrangement.   
 
Chairman Beaver discussed the McWhorter Ranch issue and said it might be appropriate for a 
member of the Board to attend those meetings.  Commissioner Bowman said he had been acting 
in that role to this point and Mr. Fyall was fully familiar with all the issues.  He said he wanted to 
want to continue with that assignment until he no longer could and the Board agreed.   
 
Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 09/17/2012 
Taxes #: 10112094 
Total all funds: $32,376.20 
 
Check Date:  09/17/2012 
Warrant #: 234650-234666 
Direct Deposit #: 77618-77818 
Total all funds: $108,527.37 
 
Check Date:  09/21/2012 
Warrant #: 65954-66152 
Taxes #: 01010912, 01160912, 05010912 
Total all funds: $620,836.27 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 
Resolutions 
 
2012-540: Renewal of License and Support for Email Firewall System from Microage  
2012-541: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110 
2012-542: Lease Agreement w/Benton Franklin Fair Association  



 - 4 - 

2012-543: Amended Agreement w/Lourdes Health Network for Residential Substance 
Abuse Treatment Services 

2012-544: Agreement w/Goodwill Industries of the Columbia, Inc. for Developmental 
Disabilities Services 

2012-545: Agreement w/Arc of Tri-Cities for Developmental Disabilities Services 
2012-546: Agreement w/Columbia Industries for Developmental Disabilities Services 
2012-547: Grant Amendment w/WA St Department of Commerce, Community Services and 

Housing Division 
2012-548: Interlocal Agreement w/Cities of Benton City, Kennewick, Prosser, Richland  and 

West Richland for Local Homeless Housing &Assistance Plans & Programs 
2012-549: Amending Benton County Resolution 2012-025; Amending Payment to Apollo 

Sheet Metal 
2012-550: Termination of Superior Court Public Defense Agreement w/S Mendoza 
2012-551: Termination of Superior Court Public Defense Agreement w/K Holt 
2012-552: Termination of Superior Court Public Defense Agreement w/S Johnson 
2012-553: Termination of Superior Court Public Defense Agreement w/L Zeigler 
2012-554: Termination of Superior Court Public Defense Agreement w/G Metro 
2012-555: Termination of Superior Court Public Defense Agreement w/D Arnold 
2012-556: Professional Services Agreement w/C Bennett 
2012-557: Contract w/Ikon Marketing Group for Internet Website for Horn Rapids Park 
2012-558: Contract w/Ikon Marketing Group for Maintenance of Internet Website for Horn 

Rapids Park 
2012-559: Rescinding Resolution 08-799 Regarding Hiring Policy for Retired Pers 1 

Employees 
2012-560: Contract w/Penser North America, Inc. for Third Party Administrative Services 
2012-561: Short Plat for Property at Prosser Shop   
2012-562: Funding Authorization to Overlay Asphalt at Hinzerling Road 
2012-563: Funding Authorization for Extension of Locust Grove Road Driveway Culvert 
2012-564: Funding Authorization to Pre-Level Harrington Road 
2012-565: Final Plat – Riverdown Estates – SUB 06-04 
 
 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:30 
a.m.  
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



1 
 

MINUTES 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Special Board Meeting 
Wednesday, September 26, 2012, 9:00 a.m.  

Commissioners’ Conference Room  
Benton County Justice Center, Kennewick, WA 

 
 
Present: Chairman James Beaver 
  Commissioner Shon Small 
  Commissioner Leo Bowman  
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Lexi Wingfield, 
Personnel.  

Kennewick Irrigation District Interviews 
 
The Board interviewed applicants Dean Dennis, Robert Frink, Penny Hermanson, and Dale 
Walter for the open director position on the Kennewick Irrigation District.  After review and 
consideration, the Board made the following motion and resolution: 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Bowman moved to appoint Dean Dennis to the open director position 
on the Kennewick Irrigation District Board. Commissioner Small seconded.   
 
Discussion 
 
Commissioner Bowman said that he felt Mr. Dennis had a better grasp of what was going on 
than what he indicated and he didn’t believe he had any axe to grind or conflict of interest.  
Commissioner Small said he also liked what he had to say about being a team player and 
improvements to be made.  Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   

Resolution  

No. 2012-566:  Appointment of Dean Dennis to the Kennewick Irrigation District  

 
The Board recessed, reconvening at 10:00 a.m. 
 
Benton County Public Facilities District Interviews 
 
As there was no one present to interview, the Board agreed to recess.  The Board reconvened at 
10:30 a.m. 
 



2 
 

The Chairman recommended the Board contact the Public Facilities District to let them know 
there were not any applicants present for the interview and request the District to make a 
recommendation for appointment.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Bowman moved to approve sending a letter to the Benton County 
Public Facilities District as recommended by the Chairman.  Commissioner Small seconded and 
upon vote, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
The Board recessed, reconvening at 11:00 a.m. 
 
Benton County Mosquito Control District Interviews 

The Board interviewed applicant Kevin Christensen for the open director position on the Benton 
County Mosquito Control District.  After review and consideration, the Board made the 
following motion and resolution: 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to appoint Kevin Christensen to the open director 
position on the Benton County Mosquito Control District. Commissioner Bowman seconded and 
upon vote, the motion carried 
 
Resolution 
 
No. 2012-567: Appointment of Kevin Christensen to the Benton County Mosquito 

Control District 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 11:15 
a.m.  
 
 
 
___________________________   _____________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



mf
Text Box
a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 107







 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:    10/2/2012  
Subject:        Sierra Elec. Contract  
Prepared by:       J. Donley  
Reviewed by:     

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 

    

Consent Agenda            __X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Benton County will be replacing thirty-six (36) above ground electrical pedestals with traffic rated 
underground vaults with watertight caps and plugs.  
 
Proposals were solicited and received from the following:  
 
• Sierra Electric, Inc., Pasco, Wa. - $30,550.00 PLUS WSST 
• Sun River Electric Service, Inc., Kennewick, Wa.- $32,361.00 PLUS WSST 
• Absolute Power, Inc., Kennewick, Wa. - $41,252.47 PLUS WSST 
• Power City Electric, Inc., Pasco, Wa. - $62,970.00 PLUS WSST 
 
Proposals were reviewed and the recommendation is to move forward with a contract for said 
services with Sierra Electric, Inc. as the lowest bidder.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Contract between Benton County and Sierra Electric, Inc., for 
a contract to replace thirty-six (36) above ground electrical pedestals with traffic rated underground 
vaults with watertight caps and plugs. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The total cost of the project is $30,550.00 PLUS WSST.  This project will be paid from the 
Fairgrounds Improvement fund 0123-101 with $30,000.00 being reimbursed through a grant 
received from the Washington State Department of Agriculture.   
 
 
MOTION 
 
Move to approve the attached contract between Benton County and Sierra Electric, Inc. for a 
contract amount of $30,550.00 PLUS WSST.  
 
 

mf
Text Box
b. Contract w/Sierra Electric, Inc. for Electrical Pedestal Replacement



Orig: Fairgrounds  J.Donley 
Cc: Auditor; D.Docken; File 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 

IN THE MATTER OF CONTRACTING WITH SIERRA ELECTRIC, INC. FOR THE ELECTRICAL 

PEDESTAL  REPLACEMENT LOCATED AT THE BENTON COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS, KENNEWICK, 

WASHINGTON 

 

   

WHEREAS, the electrical pedestals at the Benton County Fairgrounds are aging and are an 

accident hazard; and 

 

 

WHEREAS, this project was awarded grant funds from the Washington State Department of 

Agriculture in the amount of $30,000.00; and 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Benton County Commissioners recommend moving forward with the 

project; and 

 

 

WHEREAS, the following proposals were solicited from contractors on the Benton County’s 

Small Works Roster; 

 

• Sierra Electric, Inc., Pasco, Wa. –SIERREI021CZ  - $30,550.00 PLUS WSST 

• Sun River Electric Service, Inc., Kennewick, Wa.- SUNRIES156J3 - $ 32,361.00 PLUS WSST 

• Absolute Power, Inc., Kennewick, Wa. -ABSOLPI920KZ - $41,252.47 PLUS WSST 

• Power City Electric, Inc., Pasco, Wa. -  POWERCE994BA - $62,970.00 PLUS WSST 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Benton County Facilities Manager reviewed the proposals and recommends 

awarding said services to Sierra Electric, Inc., Kennewick, WA as the lowest responsive bidder for 

a proposal amount of $30,550.00 plus WSST; NOW, THEREFORE 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington 

hereby agree to move forward with this project and award the electrical pedestal replacement 

located at the Benton County Fairgrounds to Sierra Electric, Inc., Kennewick, WA for a total 

contract amount of $30,550 plus WSST; and 

 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the public works 

contract attached hereto; and 

 

 

 

 



Orig: Fairgrounds  J.Donley 
Cc: Auditor; D.Docken; File 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the term of the attached contract commences upon execution by 

both parties and shall terminate November 30, 2012. 

 

Dated this _______2nd_____ day of _____October_______ 2012. 

     

          ______________________________ 

Chairman of the Board 

 

      ______________________________ 

                                Member 

            

       ______________________________ 

                    Member 

Attest:  _____________________________ Constituting the Board of County 

  Clerk of the Board   Commissioners of Benton County, 

       Washington 

 

 





mf
Text Box
c. Agreement w/Service Alternatives, Inc. for Developmental Disabilities Services







mf
Text Box
d. Agreement w/Peopleworks Tri-Cities, LLC for Developmental Disabilities Services







mf
Text Box
e. Amended Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee







mf
Text Box
f. Agreement w/EnTrust Community Services for Developmental Disability Services







mf
Text Box
g. Contract w/M Trombley for Legal Representation Services



Originals (4):  1-BC Commissioners, 1-FC Commissioners, 1-Trombley, 1-BFJJC 

JOINT RESOLUTION 
 

BENTON COUNTY RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 

FRANKLIN COUNTY RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 

BEFORE THE BOARDS OF THE COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON AND 
FRANKLIN COUNTIES, WASHINGTON; 
 

IN THE MATTER OF THE REQUEST FOR SIGNATURE FROM THE 
BOARDS OF BENTON AND FRANKLIN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ON 
THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR LEGAL 
REPRESENTATION OF INDIGENT INDIVIDUALS IN BENTON AND 
FRANKLIN COUNTIES SUPERIOR COURT, JUVENILE DIVISION, 
BETWEEN THE JUVENILE JUSTICE CENTER AND MICHELLE T. 
TROMBLEY, and, 

 
WHEREAS, Sharon Paradis, Administrator of the Juvenile Court, believes it is in the best 
interest of the Juvenile Justice Center that the Professional Service Agreement between the 
Juvenile Court and the criminal defense panel attorney, to-wit: Michelle T. Trombley, be 
approved as presented; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 
Washington and by the Board of Franklin County Commissioners, Franklin County, 
Washington, the board concurs with the Administrator of the Juvenile Center 
recommendation and hereby awards the Professional Services Contract to Michelle T. 
Trombley in an amount not to exceed $ 147,600.00. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of the attached contract commences October 15, 
2012 and expires on December 31, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Originals (4):  1-BC Commissioners, 1-FC Commissioners, 1-Trombley, 1-BFJJC 

 
DATED this 2nd day of October  2012  DATED this 10th day of October 2012

BENTON COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS 

 FRANKLIN COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS 

   
 
 

Chairman of the Board  Chairman of the Board 
   

 
 

Member  Chairman Pro Tem 
   

 
 

Member  Member 
Constituting the Board of 
County Commissioners, 

Benton County, Washington

Constituting the Board of 
County Commissioners, 

Franklin County, Washington
Attest:  Attest: 

 
 

Clerk of the Board  Clerk of the Board 
 





mf
Text Box
h. Truancy Contract w/Kiona-Benton School District











mf
Text Box
i. Contract w/J Blanco for Functional Family Therapy Training











mf
Text Box
j. Payment Authorization to P Younesi for Preliminary Court Appearances





mf
Text Box
k. Contract w/C Poulsen for Training Services







mf
Text Box
l. Contract w/Watson Furniture Group, Inc. for Master Control Work Stations







mf
Text Box
Budget Adjustment – K Mercer









mf
Text Box
6-Year Road Program – S Becken















mf
Text Box
1-Year Road Program – S Becken













mf
Text Box
Tri City Regional Chamber of Commerce Coalition Discussion – Comnr. Beaver




	Agenda Minutes 092512
	Approval of Minutes
	Commissioner Assignment Update
	Vouchers


	Agenda Minutes 092612 SpMtg
	CA - Commissioners a
	CA - Fairgrounds b
	CA - Human Services c
	CA - Human Services d
	CA - Human Services e
	CA - Human Services f
	CA - Juvenile g
	CA - Juvenile h
	CA - Juvenile i
	CA - OPD j
	CA - Personnel k
	CA - Sheriff l
	PH -  6 Year Road Program
	PH - 6 Year Road Program Supplement 
	PH - Budget Adjustment
	Timed - 2013 One Year Program
	Timed - TC Regional Chamber Endorsement



